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MISSION STATEMENT

HFINESm EE R ERFREAHFRFERKF - HAGRALIR
HmA o BREE THIRARTS

Bk BEREERRTNES ;
EBRENERRIFERF;
fRERIFT R FER

Our mission is to assist the clothing industry to enhance its global
competitiveness through the adoption of an industry-led approach to

effectively strengthen our services in:

Training and developing management and technical professionals;
Promoting sound commercial and industrial practices;

Facilitating the application of innovation and technology.
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ERFE
CHAIRMAN’S FOREWORD

2022FHHIMRBRBITERRR > BICmRER—F o
F4) > EBURBRKERE > BE AERBNEEK
REZHTRENTE - ARTRREN—F > HES
EEIfR B E R eE S RIFHERAFTH - TEMRABEEFH

BIKEF o

HEREEF

EEEEMNEEER » FEANEREERECEE
R IRBRBE S HEISKAENER > MREF
BISEAT > BURETIHER - RAFEERSHER
BRHRSN  LREEBHMREE > BERERRM
HERNE  EEH—BCHNERTENERXESS
RalRE AR EEERZEM -

HBREHT
BEHBAEEANHERRATHENTRRNAC > B
FEARHETZEREMBABETFTHREERRE - FHMMA
RESN B IR S AR BT B PR o

HABNECERRERMNNES  SEERERAR
HRREZHT - ANEFR—RAZERBUNNHNE
BBt ZAEBREBILHERE  EREFESH
BEMEHRE > AE—ESEEREATHRFRIE -
HAEBEMRENHE CRNBERERTERERNA
MEE > LUnERAHERATIHEROFR » <&
ERESWHHRE -

Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard

B BRE

Chairman

xERE

The year 2022 proved to be a difficult time for the Authority and other
sectors due to the fifth wave of the pandemic that hit Hong Kong in the
early months. This had a severe impact on businesses, educational
institutions, and the public at large. Despite these challenges, | am
pleased to report that our team has remained professional and committed
to improving the standards of Vocational and Professional Education
and Training (VPET).

Nurturing Digital Professionals

Due to the pandemic, businesses are adapting to a new mode that
relies heavily on digitalisation and remote operations. To support this
shift, the Authority is actively training digital professionals to meet
the growing market demand. We are also improving VPET and
collaborating with partners in the Greater Bay Area to facilitate
cross-border exchanges and joint development. This regional
integration provides momentum for our development and broadens our
scope.

Promoting VPET

VPET is an important part of the education system in Hong Kong. It
offers young people an alternative path to traditional academic
education, which helps them achieve their goals and advance in their

careers.

Our commitment is to support the HKSAR Government's vision of
transforming Hong Kong into a world-class smart city. We believe that
human resources are vital to the success of Hong Kong, and we are
continuously improving our VPET programmes, teaching equipment,
and facilities to foster intelligent talents. Our efforts are geared
towards increasing the digital aspect of the curriculum and aligning it
with the industry's needs to address the growing demand for skilled
professionals.
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BE e

IRBE2021F 2B ERHERRREERRERES
Me—15E DBREEFERA FEEE > L102022F 185
IR IREITRIRM NBEBEER A FERT - ERHR
PERSBERENBEATEERRTAENENEE
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GRS » BEBtPEREENERER  EARRTE
HERES o

IR S

EHEHBORE > RAFERRAFHELN > LE
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FERFE CHAIRMAN'S FOREWORD

In promoting VPET, the Authority has spared no effort in training the
Hong Kong team for the WorldSkills Competition. Dubbed the “Olympics
of Skills”, this competition is held once every two years to enhance the
skill level of young people, foster VPET, and provide a valuable platform
for technical exchange among competitors. At the 46" WorldSkills
Competition, which took place in Helsinki, Finland from 20 to 23
October, 2022, a total of 20 competitors from different countries and
regions participated in the “Fashion Technology” trade. Hong Kong'’s
representative, Miss LIMBU Nisham, received intensive training every
day at the Authority and was well-prepared for the competition under the
guidance of the Authority's experts, eventually winning a Medallion in
“Fashion Technology”, which proves that the skills of Hong Kong
competitor is comparable to international standards and is well
recognised.

In December 2021, the Authority was appointed by the Secretary for
Education as the sole officially designated Recognition of Prior Learn-
ing (RPL) Assessment Agency for the fashion industry and started to
provide RPL assessment services for the apparel industry in January
2022. This is a recognition of our significant achievements in promoting
VPET and expanding professional recognition in the industry. We will
continue our efforts to provide assessment services to more
practitioners to help them obtain the professional qualifications and
enhance the competitiveness of the industry.

Innovation and Cooperation

Despite the difficulties posed by the pandemic, we have been proactive
in finding new and creative ways to teach and collaborating with
different groups. Our teaching approach now includes a hybrid mode of
online and face-to-face training to enhance the learning experience. We
are also actively pursuing partnerships and projects both domestically
and internationally to give our trainees a more global perspective and
improve their ability to communicate across cultures.

Our institution values strong connections with the industry. We conduct
research and transform our findings into teaching materials to enhance
our trainees’ practical skills and knowledge. Additionally, we welcome
industry experts as guest lecturers to provide trainees with the most
current industry trends and expertise.

CreateHK also supported the establishment of the Sample Development
Centre to assist Hong Kong fashion designers in creating prototypes
for their own brands.
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EREN—FE  JIREEBRRRT BEHERYE > B
BHERBENRBMETEXRSE N - RERK > HMA
RO REE BAEBIEREE - B R MM E RS
BFHEEAY > BERNAIHEZRMHER -

RROBHRES - EEENIIREZEEIERER—DO
EE—EFRAFHOSAMME - REAF « FFRAKGM
BIERBRE » ERMATERRREN—FNERE
FIRMEENREXEFHE -

Breaking New Ground Together

Over the past year, our team has overcome numerous difficulties and
made tremendous efforts to promote the development of VPET. Moving
forward, we will keep working to nurture professionals with digital skills,
innovative thinking and a global perspective to contribute to the
sustainable development of the industry.

| would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our authority members,
management and staff for their concerted efforts and dedication during
the year, as well as the support from the Government, industry partners
and collaborating organisations, which have enabled us to provide
quality education for the fashion industry in this challenging year.
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EVENTS IN BRIEF

e B iE (F#)
Fashion Summit (HK)

KR EiE (F8) B—EFINAHERRNEEES - B E
RALREEE > @BEKAFBHNTIHEMSRABRE
BIUEERE  ERHERE -

20224 - BRAREIE () BB B IHBHEMBERIR
STAMFAEE © 2022-2023F G T ER XERET > B
EERRTTE 0 BRAFHERR o

The Fashion Summit (Hong Kong) is an annual event that focuses on
sustainable fashion. It brings together industry players to promote
sustainable development by integrating innovative thinking and

sustainable concepts into business practices and consumption habits.

In 2022, Fashion Summit (Hong Kong) expands its focus to include
designers and consumers through various activities. The theme for
the 2022-2023 summit is “Actions to the Sustainability Journey”, aiming

to encourage collective action towards sustainable fashion.

RETEAERNEUFEEMAKEESBRETUNRERIREX
ERNSBHERERIIE - FHEH > RETMRIFEHKSIIRE
BEMGRE A ERF AIDRT R BB EFRM > AIEREE
gSitidm - EE2 S ERBEE RS -

A group of secondary and tertiary students from different schools
toured a digital knitting showroom located in the Kwai Shing Industrial
Building. During their visit, they witnessed a digital knitting
demonstration by a fashion designer and a knitting machine
operator. The students learned how the fashion industry can use
3D design and digitalisation technologies to produce digital knitting

fashion products.
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AEEMEFMETT - SRARBRAKEGEMR
g ERMAGEBARARNNERA L FEER
FERAUHERASENENR BVEEREENRE - &
RRREER > URBEFURINAF > BRURIREEF
HENR R ATHERE -

The seminar was held at The Mills Fabrica to discuss sustainable
fashion. Professionals from various sectors shared their views on
sustainable fashion packaging, challenges faced during packaging
transformation, policies and regulations, and successful packaging
transformation examples. The aim of the seminar was to promote

sustainable fashion development through public education.
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AEEERFOIBRER R T—EUNATRKEREREE
RIIBEENRE - BiB20EKREEE - AABANE
KRN mERT T AETFHERENRINGF - 28
BEREEBAFTNRERNKE -

At HKCEC Hall 1B, a showcase was held featuring Sustainable
Fashion Collections. More than 20 Fashion Designers and Brands
from Hong Kong, the Mainland, and Overseas presented successful
examples of sustainable fashion items. Visitors had the opportunity

to witness innovative and eco-friendly designs.
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EBHEHRBTURERE » BERFN XN BE
REREIFES  RERDENVEEBIEBRGDERFEH
FHER R AREREYOS » TR RIRE A REE BN AIHERR
WER > TEFENRRIKARRALEEGEEGAR
BRI B XER AT

The event featured eight guest speakers from various fields such
as design, entrepreneurship, academics, and media. They shared
their experiences in establishing their own brands and creating
sustainable fashion in Hong Kong. The discussion also included
the perspectives of consumers from Hong Kong and Macau on
sustainable fashion. Furthermore, a panel discussion was held to
talk about the necessary skills that fashion industry professionals
should possess to cater to the growing sustainable fashion

market.




FEHERA—BHRBEERKREENTREEN BRRRAFER
e EZHER  BEMEEAREEEESR T IG2GERT
ERERR > BREEG CRREREKRELCBERT
¥ o RBB2IANEBB X2 (EICHATY) WIa]#
BHBZR » TREBHBERRERRHOBIR - /K
ERESET > AEMAETRSHBHEENBREFREF

o
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A group of secondary and tertiary students learned about sustainable
fashion during a visit to The Mills. They were able to witness the
Garment-to-Garment (G2G) Recycle System in action at The Mills
Shopfloor, which transforms used clothing into new garments. The
students also joined the “Learning Tour on Sustainability” at CHAT
(Centre for Heritage Arts & Textile), where they learned about the
connection between the growth of Hong Kong's textile industry
and environmental protection. The CHAT team even demonstrated

how to create fabric bracelets using discarded clothing.
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FAIRBNT#HBEREERE > R —HEPENMAER
EERT ZMRET RO NAERERER - Uk = HEER
STEHFCLOMERRE - HEHPRE > BEMBERERER
CLOFERIZE CHERKEMEKERE o

At our Digital Fashion Lab, we taught a group of high school and
college students how 3D design software can be used in the
fashion industry and the fundamentals of CLO, a 3D fashion
design software. The students had the opportunity to create their
own virtual fashion designs and fashion shows using the CLO

platform during the session.




2022.7.18
KREIHEES

“Fashion” Technology Showcase

e 5 R T 0 538 4 0 B R Y B R E 8 B R
ERESRNT BHANEES) - SHNEERTERT
TRERNFEN  FER  ERREY - KEBTHE
SERBRERALRN - 7RESHRRWUKTEOAG
FHEREH o

The Authority, together with the Hong Kong Textile Council and the
Office of the Hon. Sunny Tan, organised a “Fashion Technology
Showcase” at The Mills Fabrica. The showcase displayed new
technologies, research projects, products, and services within the
fashion industry, while also offering visitors the chance to engage
with industry players and learn about innovative technologies and

information in the textile and garment industry.

EMmE
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2022.8.12
AR EREIEEERERE

Sustainable Fashion Competition cum Fashion Show

EEEEEEEETERAKE  BEBEREENERM
E2MELAIENARNERFRARENSS > WEBLEMN
RERBEHEEAREEEANER -

The aim of the event is to encourage sustainable fashion practices
such as recycling and repairing clothes. The participants had the
opportunity to use their creativity to extend the lifespan of their
garments and promote sustainable living through fashion shows

and competitions.




2022.10.20 - 23
HAFKEAE | R

WorldSkills Competition: Fashion Technology

BAEMURERBIRSBMHEFES1T » £B20E%RE
FRIBER KM ERF 2RI EE -

Mt FRREAE I WERTRERNEMTR) > SHESH—
R BEEEBKERE  (REFTFEABERKENEA > N
BMEEREREERIBBIN » HEERESEHFMEI -

MEOHERARBTADMLERS > LEREBEES - &
ROHKERAERERS » BEIISREFETERRERE -1
BTYEFSRLEBMER—F > USXPIIREEZEER
AR - UEB it R REERE o

The 46" WorldSkills Competition took place in Helsinki, Finland.
Participants from 20 different countries and regions competed in

the "Fashion Technology" trade.

The competition, also known as the “Olympics of Skills”, is organised
every two years and aims to promote vocational skills among
young people, enhance regional exchanges in the field of
vocational skills, and facilitate the development of vocational and

professional education and training through skills competitions.

Miss LIMBU Nisham was selected to represent Hong Kong in this
year's competition and was awarded the Medallion. Nisham has a
passion for fashion design. She took a year off from school to train
intensely every day at the Authority in preparation for the competition

and hopes to pursue a career in the fashion industry.
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2022.10.31
EEMBREXRABENPEAREMBEKIITIAFEEE
Hong Kong Textile and Garment Sector Celebrating the 73"
Anniversary of the Founding of the People's Republic of China

BEMPEARHEMBMIITIESF » EBMHERME - T
MEEE ASREERERFERERIIKE > TEEER
BHBEERASBHENES - BEXTER T+ KRAXFIEL
EIRRERLRDE  HEERBBEE - BEE5YS
HIRARERE  BTRERNREMRR -

To celebrate the 73" anniversary of the founding of the People's
Republic of China, the Textile Council of Hong Kong, the Hong
Kong General Chamber of Textiles, the Office of the Hon. Sunny
Tan and the Authority jointly held a reception at Island Shangri-La
Hotel, Hong Kong. The theme was “Opening a new journey with
the 20t National Congress; creating a strong impetus for Hong
Kong’s growth; and dovetailing with national strategies”. A fashion
exhibition was specially set up at the reception venue to showcase

the fashion products.
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2022.12.15
RERMEEA2022
My Best Trainer 2022

SEMAERSHMMATIIRESZHBREMEENISNE
RS - SAREEREHURNEEEANERER
AR EMERRA o

The trainees had an opportunity to show appreciation towards
their trainers who provided guidance and support during their time
at the Authority. The trainers were recognised for their dedication
and positive impact on the trainees' personal and professional

development.
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HliREER

MEMBERS OF THE AUTHORITY

B IERE (X))
Mr. CHENG Man-tak,
Richard (Chairman)
EENRERBIAR
representing The Federation
of Hong Kong Garment
Manufacturers

BRkRTE
Mr. CHAN Wing-on,
Milton
EREMHOBEERREARAR
representing the Hongkong

Knitwear Exporters &
Manufacturers Association Ltd.

RYESEL L
Ms. CHEUNG Suen-fei,
Anne

EBURBRAXAGAR
representing the Hong Kong
Garment Manufacturers
Association Ltd.

BREW TE
Mr. CHAN Tat-pan,
Benny
EETEEEAR

representing the Federation
of Hong Kong Industries

BRkRTE
Mr. CHAN Wing-on,
Roger
ERHOBEAR
representing The Hong Kong
Exporters’ Association

HFRBLL
Ms. FANG Suk-kwan,
Katherine
ERFEMMIEEREEAR
representing the Hong Kong
Woollen and Synthetic Knitting
Manufacturers’ Association Ltd.

REHEL
Dr. CHAN Yuk-mau,
Eddie

EBURBRZELATAR
representing the Hong Kong
Garment Manufacturers
Association Ltd.

L
Ge5Ey
REIFLL

Ms. Janet CHEUNG

JEMERAE R AL
Lay Member

ALt
Ms. FUNG Yuen-han

BIgAX

representing Trade Union



=EBEL
Dr. HWONG Yau-hung,
Benny
HREEIRERITRERS
nominated by the Executive
Director of the Vocational
Training Council

S

EREMEE
Mr. LOK Pak-keung,
Robert
ERTEREHAEAR
representing The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of
Hong Kong

EEERE
Prof. KAN Chi-wai
2 AR By S T 5 i 2R A R
ZEEARR

representing the Fashion and
Textile Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council

FEifit

Ms. WONG Yuen-shan,

Candice

HIREFNEEEMERAR
representing the Permanent
Secretary for Labour and

Welfare

KigRzt
Ms. YAU Kit-yu, Iris
ITXEZEERARR
representing the Director-General
of Trade and Industry

HiER T

Mr. YEUNG Chun-fan
ERUREEFIAR

representing The Federation of
Hong Kong Garment

Manufacturers

FfR/EZ & Members of the Authority

BIREE
Mr. LAU Man-tung,
Benjamin
i 2 3 460 P s e Rk A i 2 A1 R
ZREAR
representing the Fashion and

Textile Training Board of the
Vocational Training Council

ERERL
Ms. YANG Ming-yen,
Teresa
EEREHEAR

representing The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce

(202245 A31 H&ER)
(w.e.f. 31 May 2022)
EERLL
Ms. WONG Wai-yin,
Joyce
HIREMNBEEWERAR
representing the Permanent
Secretary for Labour and Welfare

(2022598300 £%)
(w.e.f. 30 September 2022)

‘rERZL
Ms. SUEN Wing-sze,
Susanna
TXEZEERAR

representing the Director-General
of Trade and Industry

17
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STRUCTURE OF THE AUTHORITY

BREIHBPLOTS5EIR » BT EIIG (B %) The Clothing Industry Training Authority was established by
IEBIRR T » ZEBI B SIET ISR B ST statute in September 1975 according to the Industrial Training
© BX7 =R AITR /= .

(Clothing Industry) Ordinance. The functions of the Authority as
defined in Section 5 of the Ordinance are:

1. SRKRFRHIIKRSERE; 1. to provide training courses for the clothing industry;
2. BIERIRR T R S T 2D 2. to establish and maintain industrial training centres;
3. to assist in the placement of persons completing training
3. WBITERAIRERZRIARLEE ; courses:
4. TBEEELERS - 4. to make recommendations with respect to the rate of levy.
IR ERTERESHEM > HhS : The Authority shall consist of 17 members of whom:
O BANUKEETERRIEINATS @ Two shall be persons nominated by The Federation of Hong
Kong Garment Manufacturers;
O EERHKBRELEMEINAMSE ; @ Two shall be persons nominated by the Hong Kong
Garment Manufacturers Association Ltd.;
O BEIISERERGBEIIGREZESREINATRS ; @ Two shall be persons nominated by the Fashion and Textile
Training Board of the Vocational Training Council;
O BEEIEEEMREEHNA—S; () One shall be a person nominated by the Federation of
Hong Kong Industries;
O EEVPEREHRSEMEINA—RZ; @ One shall be a person nominated by The Chinese
Manufacturers’ Association of Hong Kong;
O BEAFEMEHBERBERMREINA—Z @ One shall be a person nominated by the Hong Kong Woollen
and Synthetic Knitting Manufacturers’ Association Ltd.;
O FELEOBEMEZEHA—S; () One shall be a person nominated by The Hong Kong
Exporters’ Association;
O EEEPEREENA—SE; (@ One shall be a person nominated by The Hong Kong
General Chamber of Commerce;
O FATREITHKREGHNBISNEIRENIA () One shall be a person who holds office as an official of a
—&; trade union which is registered in Hong Kong and
connected with the clothing industry;
O BEIKEHITHRIEMREIMA—Z ; @ One shall be a person nominated by the Executive Director of
the Vocational Training Council;
O EEEREOBREEERLTFARENA—SE ; () One shall be a person nominated by the Hongkong
Knitwear Exporters & Manufacturers Association Ltd.;
O RBAEWE R @ Two shall be public officers; and
@) One shall be a person, not being a public officer or person
O WIEABABRE BREZEBTARERHA—S connected with any of the organisations as mentioned

above.
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COMMITTEES

JERTENERELEER  EE+EREEFHE
BREEEZEEE > aFHMIE ZEFTUERKBHN
AIBMEEGEE > WHIRMEXER -

BELEEQEEEEREEIRBEMENRIESERE - Fl
MEEZREZEEETTMRIIRBEE > REIRBH
RIRERR > iR HH PR 7T B o

BN EEREREERIIRENE RERREF
WRBEEEANBRRER > HBAERRBEKE
OB SR 3R 51 3 RO R IR R AR

MEBEZREE
WX ERE (EF)
BREW L
BRKZRE
BIXEREE
BEmkt
Tzt
HiRE L

ZETWNE
EHFEARRESENEER

1.
2. FEHRBEKEER

3. EEERIIRBETEREECRESEHE R

4. MEMBRMBAIECEE > BilRERHER -

2% Committees

To enable the Authority to better discharge its functions and
achieve its objectives, five committees were appointed from
among its 17 members to take responsibilities of specific
functions. Committees were empowered to co-opt any
person whose professional advice is expected.

The Committees oversee specific issues that may affect the
operation of the Authority. The Authority held two meetings
to deliberate its way forward and set forth the related strategies
to cope with future changes.

The Committees will continuously pledge to monitor the
effectiveness of allocation of resources and the efficiency of
the operation of the Authority. In the long run, the Committees
aspire the Authority as a major change agent to assist Hong
Kong to become the fashion design, development and
trading hub in the Asia Pacific Region.

Committee on Finance

Mr. CHENG Man-tak, Richard (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Tat-pan, Benny

Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger

Mr. LAU Man-tung, Benjamin

Mr. LOK Pak-keung, Robert

Ms. WONG Yuen-shan, Candice

Mr. YEUNG Chun-fan

Terms of Reference:

1. To negotiate with the Government on loans for
development;

2. To prepare annual estimates of income and expenditure;

3. To be responsible for the investment of the Authority’s
funds which are not immediately required; and

4. To advise the Authority on any other financial matters
referred to it by the Authority.
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BEEUNREAT
BIXREE (EF)
BREZEM A
BRKZRE
BREHEL
BEmkE
Tzt

EEGRE:

1. EEATRER S EE IR O 2185 5

2. HAEBEBREIIGRTOCBEMREHE &
3. BEIBRTLEREENEESECER

RERRMFAEAT
HBEELL (XF)
RESHL
Bt
HEREL
LR EE 6
LEREZL

EEERE:

1. REBMREZIMREREBRERERYE
RS R IR ;

2. BEEXNEMETSIENGSEE;
HERFIRP OB EKE ; &

4, HEEHZETIIRERECER

Committee on Building Development
Mr. LAU Man-tung, Benjamin (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Tat-pan, Benny

Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Milton

Dr. CHAN Yuk-mau, Eddie

Mr. LOK Pak-keung, Robert

Ms. WONG Yuen-shan, Candice

Terms of Reference:

1. To negotiate with the Government on land grant for
Training Centres;

2. To liaise with the architect responsible for the building of
the Centres; and

3. To be responsible for matters relating to the buildings
after completion.

Committee on Courses and Equipment
Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa (Chairman)

Ms. Janet CHEUNG

Ms. FUNG Yuen-han

Dr. HWONG Yau-hung, Benny

Prof. KAN Chi-wai

Ms. YAU Kit-yu, Iris

Terms of Reference:

1. To decide the training courses to be run, necessary equipment
and materials to be purchased, and the disposal of
finished products;

2. To be responsible for the efficient operation of the training
courses;

3. To maintain the standard of instruction; and

4. To advise on and monitor the placement of trainees upon
completion of training courses.
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mIlRBRAEMESFEIZER
ER—MEGEAXHER;

BB EFEZIET > RPFEMSMEMES ; &
SLEIIRRE ek H RS

RESHEZSE
BRIk R E (EF)
BRxZTE
REME L
RIEIELZ L
AREBELL
BRBEL

ER TR -

1.

BEHEREEE SRR BEZER &
B R EL o AR B R 14 5
REAMBEMAZSEZEE ; &
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ZE% Committees

Committee on Public Relations
Ms. Janet CHEUNG (Chairman)
Ms. CHEUNG Suen-fei, Anne

Ms. FANG Suk-kwan, Katherine
Ms. FUNG Yuen-han

Prof. KAN Chi-wai

Ms. YANG Ming-yen, Teresa

Terms of Reference:

1. To make recommendations to the Authority on publicity
programme;
To propose an estimate of expenditure for publicity;

w N

On the advice of the Authority’s Chairman, to initiate
additional activities as appropriate; and

4. To undertake such other activities as the Authority may
direct.

Committee on Staff Establishment
Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Roger (Chairman)
Mr. CHAN Wing-on, Milton

Dr. CHAN Yuk-mau, Eddie

Ms. CHEUNG Suen-fei, Anne

Ms. FANG Suk-kwan, Katherine

Dr. HWONG Yau-hung, Benny

Terms of Reference:

1. To be responsible for staffing matters including the
recruitment, salary and other conditions of service for
the Authority’s staff;

2. To decide any other personnel matters; and

3. To negotiate, when necessary, with Government on the
secondment of officers from the civil service.
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FEE JIHEENE2BEEAZE41IA > FIEBHES At the end of the year, the Authority had a full-time staff of 41 and

TIZBEUERE A REIZE 9 1ZI5852 o employed 32 lecturers to teach some of its training courses on a
part-time basis.

ZIHEBRAREHEREMHREEIIKE > GiF8 M The Authority is committed to providing a variety of training opportunities

S0 | 48 FEE \ ERERANER SRR AR A T YRS o (& for its staff, including academic courses, online learning, internal and

EE RIS S AR ES ST » TR M external courses and skills workshops. Partial sponsorship is available

H =1\ Y =15 n e

HIE T 80 H B TS 2 W o 7B RN — for degree programs, and full sponsorship is available for other
m /il BY b B Rl 115 ° 1fxE J— ’

HETEHEZ M T SEFEAEARHEIIER -

technical and professional training. In the past year, 7 staff members

participated in 5 different types of training programs.

FRENBERTARLTE

Staff position at the year-end is set out below:

RE AR

STAFF GRADE
NUMBER OF STAFF

BIPEELE 1 Acting Executive Director

ERIZACIR 1 Programme Manager

HE&KE 2 Project Manager

EREMAER 10 Project Technical Staff

TS IR 2 Administrative Manager

TEBhIE 5 Administrative Assistant

ARE 3 Cleaner

$25t 41 Total
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Trainee
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28 Trainee

The Authority provides courses that equip trainees with professional
knowledge and skills to enhance their performance and development
in the workplace. We also offer short courses for quick skill

upgrades.

The courses cater to a diverse range of trainees, whether they are
seasoned professionals or new to the workplace. Trainees have the
option to choose full-time or part-time courses to fit their schedules.
The Authority offers modern classrooms, laboratories, and libraries

to provide a quality learning environment.

The Authority partners with the industry to ensure that the course
content aligns with market demand. Trainees can participate in
events like career fairs, workshops, and seminars to gain insights into

career trends and employment opportunities.

This year, a total of 3,182 trainees completed the programmes at the

Authority. The number of trainees of each programme type is

summarised as follows:

NUMBEF:EAIIFATfAINEES FROGRAMME TYFE
FRERTE 1,414 Training Programmes
D EEFEI| 62 Corporate Training
Wete, T1Eh 1,706 Seminars / Workshops
iBE 3,182 Total
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Training Programme

1220225 > JlRBRM T —R7 2 B H R RHFIRE -
FARERERRERTEREERBEBA LMK > HE
RIZAUEHREAREONENREE - RMEA IR
BMMISHEN - REBERESN > JIRBTERBHHEER
RAEBATAENIFRERE > PEUREHRNEES
TE BRI B I E ©

BB E SRR

H20195#E » EERBERBFTRHEXEEERMIK
BEMARE - KRESWMEZHH > LEBFMEE
HE/RPRIEEET ) (SSSDP) &R - REEEEE
SENAERH  FAREFEHHAEMBBRERNE
BT - BBBEENANKERRAE > B8
A ERHERERREE - BERRRERTRMEUEE
BE R

PR SR AU R B 1T TR

BB 5 7 5 A 3 STUR

LW EREERBEIMAE > LEMAEEERES -
BEANISEARNTMI2EE T - IkMEREZEDHIES
B2FREAIH B HMER) NERKENREREER
R R AR R il LRI 1TRIRCEE ©

In 2022, the Authority offered a series of full-time and part-time
programmes. All these programmes were designed for the
practitioners in relevant industries as well as interested
students to update and upgrade their knowledge and skills so
as to enhance their performance and competitiveness in the
market. Besides the award-bearing programmes, the Authority
also offered non-award-bearing courses for in-service personnel
and interested students to acquire specific knowledge or skills in

the short term.

Higher Diploma in Digital Fashion Creation

This higher diploma programme has been jointly offered by the
Li Ka Shing School of Professional and Continuing Education
of the Hong Kong Metropolitan University since 2019. It is a
two-year full-time programme subsidised by the government
under the Study Subsidy Scheme for Designated
Professions/Sectors (SSSDP) and aims to foster a
creative mindset and equip students with technical
competencies for the creation of fashion-related products.
Through a digital approach to fashion design and creation,
students is able to learn and practice skills in digital pattern
making for fashion, digital pattern cutting for fashion and virtual

fashion shows.

Diploma in Fashion Creation Technology
Diploma in Fashion Product Development

These two are QF level 3 diploma programmes and are included
in the Continuing Education Fund. Students have to complete
12 modules in 18 months. These two programmes equip
students with technical competence in fashion clothing creation
(cut and sewn), and competence in developing fashion products

that are commercially and technically viable respectively.
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ZIfERERA2 Training Programme

Diploma Scheme in Fashion and Textil Studies

This programme has been designed for the practitioners in
clothing and related industries as well as interested students.
It aims to equip students with the necessary knowledge and
skills so as to enhance their performance and competitiveness

in the ever-changing environment.

Certificate in Footwear
This programme comprises two modules: Practical Shoemaking
and Footwear Leather. Students are equipped with the knowledge

and skills in the making of shoes with leather.

Short Courses

The Authority offered a series of short courses like sewing,
pattern design, clothing alteration, dressmaking, computer &
digital technology courses, etc. for the in-service personnel

and interested students.

Skills Upgrading Courses

The Authority offered a series of ERB courses in the area of
wearing apparel & textile. These courses aim to provide
training to the new entrants of relevant industries and enhance

the knowledge and skills of the practitioners.
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Corporate Training

20225 > Pk B B EEMAEBITEREH®E T -3 ES In 2022, a range of bespoke corporate training programs

- - . [ was offered for the fashion and related industries. The
MEEBFINER - FHIRNBCIERET - REEE - #

training encompassed various aspects such as design,

ENMEEERAE o UTHEME TR DL clothing production, maintenance, and repair. The following

A

list outlines the specific courses that were organised:

B fe RS - SR

Dressmaking: Fashion Dress

U
Digital Fashion Design

IRKERFEEFRR

Maintenance of Industrial Sewing Machine
and Special Sewing Machine
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Seminar and Workshop

lEEBRIERNERIFY > BOTEREXERR
RALEM - ELEFNENERSEERHEHN
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3DERIRFEEE

3D Virtual Garment

287 T HIDIRERMHPRETRIERANER » RER

HEERIRENE R o

Trainees have the opportunity to learn about the application
and development of 3D fashion software. They can also gain
experience in the basic techniques of creating virtual

garments.

HEt & & T1EY5 Seminar and Workshop

The Authority hosted several seminars and workshops that
were open to both industry professionals and the general
public. The purpose of these events was to equip
participants with the most up-to-date industry knowledge
and skills, foster communication and collaboration, and
assist them in adapting to the constantly changing market
and technological landscape. In 2022, the Authority
organised the following seminars and workshops:

Fashion Technology Showcase

Creating a strong impetus for Hong Kong’s growth,
and dovetailing with national strategies

In addition, the Sample Development Centre organised the
following workshops for fashion designers on pattern and
garment production techniques:

[S1 0% ]

Fashion Costing
TEHEBRAZHMBREEREEAFETENR
BoEBEZMEBTREERAZTONMEMRRGTERE
BRA > RTPEERMAEREFBMAE > BF
HEERENAIANEER MR DBRKREA o

At this workshop, trainees gain knowledge on how to determine the
overall cost of fashion. They will learn about the different elements
that make up the cost, how to accurately measure and manage
fabric usage, assess the factors that impact fashion costs, and
discover ways to minimise expenses when making clothing.
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Handmade 3D Seamless Sleeves

LTS AIE2MEREMATN A FEMETF TRF
3DEREM T EEARFEMMBRENERRMER
FERRF-

In this workshop, trainees discover how to make 3D seamless
sleeves using wool fibre by hand. This technique, known as

wool felting, is exclusive to wool fibre.

SRR REEE

Pattern Construction for High Fashion
TS EHRBMEZIBHNBEEEBEESR
i > BRPEMEG S EZRERERNERE R
R R R EHEAR R R A -

In this workshop, trainees learn how to create advanced
fashion by altering the paper pattern structure. Additionally,
the instructor will provide valuable insights on paper
pattern-making techniques and important concerns on
pattern technology.

37 RS S RS

Pattern Draping

URHEFERHEH EARBEILEE > TURE
BERREER > EHR LB ~ ERAARMMEH
AR > BRETEIIEMAI ER St & FH RS RAVARS
% BRI AR o

Draping is a technique where fabric is draped over a
mannequin to measure and then modified by cutting
and adding to it. This creates a paper pattern that helps
designers create dynamic shapes and lines with ease.




HEt & & T1EY5 Seminar and Workshop

AIFHRIERES © HEEDSR

Sustainability in Fashion: Botanical Print

IHRBERERMNBEABERNENESFEY » &8
BAZRNEERANKEGIERRENFHXAECR
Bk > WEENRHE LR REENER o

In the workshop, trainees learn how to use dried and
discarded plants like flowers and leaves. By applying
high-temperature steaming and pressure binding
techniques, the natural colours of these plants are
released and transferred to fabric, resulting in stunning
patterns.

vt 2l

Textile Knowledge

e T fR8h = B 582 N & 585870 R HE e R i AN SRR

REE DBV « SBEA LT « 2EREMES

BRAER « TREARBBR RN A R A
VRE > WERINFEESEREABRE P HIILIEE

o

This workshop aims to provide participants with a better

understanding of fibres’ structure, the classification of

woven and knitted fabric, fabric printing, dyeing, and their

common defects. This workshop also covers the impact of

different fabric structures and properties on fashion costs
and how to strike a balance in the fashion-making process.
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Industry Support Project

IMBRETEXIRRY > EEHMBTRERERT
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REXVEFTEERTIESEERB THORERS > 5
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ANBEEERS -

The Authority offers industry support services that aim to
assist businesses in staying competitive in the global
market. Drawing from its extensive industry knowledge and
technical expertise, the Authority tailors individualised
training solutions to meet the specific needs of each

organisation.

Recognition of Prior Learning

Recognition of Prior Learning (RPL) for the Fashion Industry
is an accreditation mechanism under the Qualifications
Framework (QF) to recognise the work experience and
competencies of employees accumulated in the workplace.
The RPL allows employees to obtain QF-recognised
qualifications that can support their further education and

career advancement.

The Authority has been appointed as the RPL Assessment
Agency for the Fashion Industry. There are 27 clusters
available for application in areas such as Auxiliary Skill,
Design, Technical Support, Quality System and Sustainability,

and Laundry Services.

Between 2022 and 2026, applicants at QF levels 1 to 3 can
obtain RPL qualifications through document verification
instead of assessments. To promote RPL services during
this period, seminars, meetings, visits, exhibitions,
publications, and other channels are being utilised to
generate interest from potential applicants and organisations.
As a result, over 90 applications successfully passed the
assessments and were awarded statements of attainment in

the respective competencies assessed.
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T%3RTER INDUSTRY SUPPORT PROJECT

Projects Funded by HSBC Hong Kong Community Partnership Programme

AT R AN
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Sew So Happy - Sustainable Fashion

The purpose of this project is to encourage sustainable
lifestyles by providing training on sustainable fashion skills.
These skills involve recycling and repairing clothing, giving
community members the ability to prolong the life of their

fashion garments in a creative and enjoyable manner.

The goal of this competition is to encourage sustainable
lifestyles. Participants are given the opportunity to
showcase their creativity by using recycled clothing to
extend the life of their garments. The event culminates in a
fashion show where participants can demonstrate their

sustainable practices.
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Government Funded Project

HEEEHHENIER

Projects Funded by the CreateSmart Initiative

B E AR E AT I MR E S
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Establishing a Sample Development Centre for Hong
Kong Fashion Designers

The Sample Development Centre is dedicated to providing
sample-making services for fashion designers. Fashion
designers can submit their design drawings to the centre,
and the centre will produce the first prototype for designers
to evaluate and revise their designs and finally turn them
into finished products.

In addition, the Centre also held a series of workshops on
pattern and sewing techniques. These workshops aim to
enhance the skills and knowledge of the participants so that
they can better understand and apply these techniques in
fashion design. The topics of the workshop include the
making of paper patterns, the application of sewing technology,
the quality evaluation of different kinds of textiles, etc.
These workshops can not only help fashion designers
improve their professional skills, but also stimulate their
creativity and inspiration, so as to create more creative and
valuable fashion.

Fashion Summit (HK) 2022-23

Fashion Summit (Hong Kong) is the top event in Asia for
sustainable fashion. Since 2017, it has been a two-day
international summit that brings together leaders in the
fashion industry, including academics, NGO representatives,
media professionals, and decision makers. They discuss
the latest developments, innovations, solutions, and
opportunities in sustainable fashion and promote the

sustainable development of the fashion industry.

Starting in 2022, Fashion Summit (Hong Kong) further
focuses on fashion designers and consumers by organising
seminars, exhibitions, workshops, guided tours, and
overseas study tours to promote Hong Kong as a creative
fashion hub. The goal is to encourage fashion industry
players to integrate innovative thinking and sustainable
concepts into their business practices and to cultivate

sustainable consumption habits.

The theme of the Fashion Summit (Hong Kong) for
2022-2023 is “Actions to the Sustainability Journey”.
Sustainable fashion is a journey, and the summit allows us to
discuss diverse solutions and act together to make sustainable
fashion a reality.
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To the members of Clothing
Industry Training Authority

(Established in Hong Kong under the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Clothing Industry
Training Authority (the “Authority”) set out on pages 33 to 68,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and
the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the financial position of the Authority as at 31
December 2022, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirement of the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Audliifor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Authority in accordance with the HKICPA's Cocde of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.
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Responsibilities of the Authority for the financial
statements

The Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance requires
the Authority to maintain proper accounts and records of all
income and expenditure and to prepare financial statements
comprising income and expenditure and assets and
liabilities of the Authority that give a true and fair view, and
for such internal control as the Authority determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the members are
responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the members either intend to liquidate the
Authority or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the finan-
cial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our
agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
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B AR 55 E INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

@ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

() Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Authority’s internal control.

@ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the Authority.

@ Conclude on the appropriateness of the Authority’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Authority’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’'s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Authority to cease to continue
as a going concern.
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() Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the Authority regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies

in internal control that we identify during our audit.

ERNST & YOUNG

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

2 May 2023
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iR REHEEINER
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR

LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE2022F12 H31 HIEEE  Year ended 31 December 2022

KA INCOME
AR ARk ER Gross training levy 153,320 232,595
W ERERBKER Less: Collection fee charged by Customs
and Excise Department (51,060) (54,330)
102,260 178,265
BITFBRA Bank Interest income 633 16
IR REKRE Receipts from training courses 10,017,661 10,868,915
THEEBKA Industrial project income 7,717,807 12,238,656
B 2MA Dividend income 3,924,219 3,812,335
HEERHKE Gain on lease modification 315 _
HIERA Sundry income 303,503 206,441
22,066,398 27,304,628
TH EXPENDITURE
ERE Audit fee 153,750 150,000
e Depreciation 416,133 426,165
EEER Expenses on publicity 195,795 22,458
— BT HEY General administrative expenses 4,165,370 4,161,519
IXEEMRX Industrial project expenses 6,588,372 9,864,922
b SRA SR T 2 Lecture fee on training courses 1,128,140 1,053,260
BIMA Staff costs 8,526,258 9,567,456
IR A Training costs 68,619 82,209
HEYE - BEERGHIE Loss on disposal of items of property, plant 600 -
and equipment
HEAENFEZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 3,826 3,703
21,246,863 25,331,692
FEERER SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR 819,535 1,972,936
Hihzmkas OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
EREREE  AEEFHIEE Other comprehensive income that will not be
EavzHEHmMmE2EKE reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
AT EETERE Changes in fair value of equity investments
BEHAEMER at fair value through other comprehensive
KWK IR E income 2,515,500 5,001,700
EREMREKE OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(FR#R%8) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 2,515,500 5,001,700
AEEFEZERS TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR 3,335,035 6,974,636
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

72022 % 12 H31 H Asat31December2022

ERHEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
M- BERFRE Property, plant and equipment 5 1,092,516 1,165,622
FHEEE Right-of-use assets 5 137,541 91,362
BATFEIIAEMEE Equity investments at fair value through
KRN ERE other comprehensive income 6 84,507,700 81,992,200
FE{TRIE Prepayments 9,761 273,738
EREEEEE Total non-current assets 85,747,518 83,522,922
RENEE CURRENT ASSETS
FE I R R Accounts receivable 7 901,902 571,328
FEARIE - REREM Prepayments, deposits and other

FE& It 3R receivables 8 1,243,492 2,178,908
HERIBITHEER Cash and bank balances 9 19,856,504 10,155,672
RENEEEEE Total current assets 22,001,898 12,905,908
ENRR CURRENT LIABILITIES
FE £ R R Accounts payable 10 236,036 259,389
HhE IR EFTE B Other payables and accruals 11 10,983,877 3,020,756
HEaE Lease liabilities 5 48,072 44,652
RENEREE Total current liabilities 11,267,985 3,324,797
BN ERE NET CURRENT ASSETS 10,733,913 9,581,111
BEERRSEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 96,481,431 93,104,033
JEREN A (R NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEaE Lease liabilities 5 93,038 50,675
HERE NET ASSETS 96,388,393 93,053,358
i RESERVES
i General reserve 12 36,665,949 35,846,414
RTERFEE Fair value reserve 59,722,444 57,206,944
fEtaEE TOTAL RESERVES 96,388,393 93,053,358

——-

CHENG Man-tak, Ricklrd

BXE

Chairman

EFE
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HZE2022F 12 H31 HIEEFEE  Year ended 31 December 2022

REERE EiEGE At
Fair value reserve General reserve Total reserves
AT AT AT
HK$
72021%E181H At 1 January 2021 52,205,244 33,873,478 86,078,722
FARBER Surplus for the year 1,972,936 1,972,936
FREMEZEKES ! Other comprehensive income for the year:
BRATEEEHES) Changes in fair value of equity
FIAEMEEKRH investments at fair value through other
R E (RRE) comprehensive income, net of tax
5,001,700 - 5,001,700
FREZ2ERS Total comprehensive income for the year 5,001,700 1,972,936 6,974,636
72021%F12831HK At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022
2022F1H1H 57,206,944 35,846,414 93,053,358
FNRBER Surplus for the year - 819,535 819,535
FREMEEKS : Other comprehensive income for the year:
BATEHEEEES Changes in fair value of equity
FIAHMEEKRHN investments at fair value through other
BRERE (RIRR) comprehensive income, net of tax 2,515,500 - 2,515,500
FREZERS Total comprehensive income for the year 2,515,500 819,535 3,335,035
#20228F12H31H At 31 December 2022 59,722,444 36,665,949 96,388,393

BIEIIR (RKER) %A JIRBENESRMESRE ()R
TR (BWRZE) 5HIE27 (2)REEREN » HERFH
THERAT BRABEMRERBNBRRWME ; (i) %
BB - B 1880~ BA ~ HEHF RFABEIRRIE ;
(i) HEEMBEINRBFERNRIRB AN ERHER
BHEHME ; k(v) IIREREBNMEEREINZE
Hithv RBERME -

Under the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance, the
funds and property of the Authority shall consist of (i) subject to
section 27(2) of the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance, all amounts of levy and surcharge collected by the
Commissioner of Customs and Excise Department of the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region; (ii) any moneys
received by the Authority by way of grants, loans, donations, fees,
rent or interest; (iii) all moneys derived from the sales of any
property held by or on behalf of the Authority; and (iv) all other
moneys and property lawfully received by the Authority for its
purposes.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HZE2022F 12 H31 HIEEFEE  Year ended 31 December 2022

REXFRBRESR CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
KEERE Surplus for the year 819,535 1,972,936
AR Adjustments for:
BAFE R A Finance cost 5 3,826 3,703
|RITHEWA Bank interest income (633) (16)
BRATEFIAHME Dividend income from equity investments at
RSB RIERE fair value through other comprehensive income 6 (3,924,219) (3,812,335)
HEME - BERE Loss on disposal of items of property, plant
i d it ] and equipment 600 -
HEEHHNKR Gain on lease modification 5 (315) R
e Depreciation 5 416,133 426,165
(2,685,073) (1,409,547)
FEUIR TR 2/ (38 00) Decrease/ (increase) in accounts receivable (330,574) 4,487
FEFUE ~ e R HMA Decrease in prepayments, deposits and other
FEUWIR TR receivables 1,199,393 400,217
FEAIIRFNIG N/ Gl Increase/ (decrease) in accounts payable (23,353) 50,003
HihFEI IR FEST & Increase/ (decrease) in other payables and
Fgm/ G accruals 7,963,121 (7,217,939)
REERESE/(FTR) Re Cash generated from/ (used in) operations 6,123,514 (8,172,779)
HEaGEZAEER Interest element on lease liabilities 14 (3,826) (3,703)
EEBRESE/ FrA) Net cash flows generated from/ (used in) operating
RIRSRERE activities 6,119,688 (8,176,482)
HERBRERESRE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
BAYE BERKXEIEER Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment 5 (294,345) (118,065)
BYFI R Interest received 633 16
BRATEIIAHEMEE Dividends received from equity investments
IR EREFKREINERE at fair value through other comprehensive income 6 3,924,219 3,812,335
KREEBBRESRERHE Net cash flows from investing activities 3,630,507 3,694,286
MEEBRERESNRE CASH FLOWS FROM A FINANCING ACTIVITY
TENHENIENR S XA Principal portion of lease payments and cash
ReR flows used in a financing activity 14 (49,363) (51,641)
ReRF&EEEH NET INCREASE/ (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
o/ (D) B CASH EQUIVALENTS 9,700,832  (4,533,837)
FNRERRESEEER Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 10,155,672 14,689,509
FRESRNREFEEE CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 19,856,504 10,155,672
ReRREFEHBHERSIF ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS
REeERTLEER Cash and bank balances 9 19,856,504 10,155,672
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2.1

B 75 R ZRMIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Authority is established in Hong Kong under the Industrial
Training (Clothing Industry) Ordinance. The Authority is a
not-for-profit organization and its principal activities are to
provide training courses for the clothing industry, establish
and maintain industrial training centers, assist in the
placement of persons completing training courses and make
recommendations with respect to the rate of levy.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income which have been
measured at fair value. These financial statements are

presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”).

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES

The Authority has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30 July 2021

Amendments to HKAS 16

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended
Use

Amendments to HKAS 37

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
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2.2

2.3

BHEREHRRE (R

BB SRR 2018-2020F B EHIF /B K&

EEMBREERNELS - Fo98 - F16MBEH MR
EHREBGHENFILRZIETE

REEAMBREENCMERZENAMBRE
WEEEBAMBHEE

v |

EiEFERREYNERMBREEMN

FRB IR A B HRERPIRNTIEEM > ERKE
BRI RASEFT N EBM B RELER

EAMBRELENFEIORREBGFTERS28(2011)
ZIERT R
REEZHANENSENECHNEELHEH T’

EBMBREERBIR BT A
ERfblcHERE?

BRMBIREERELTHR
REZ 2T

EBMBREEAEITRLIETA
EIREHR 1

BEAMBREERNBLITHRET X
IR IEFE B IR EERIEITHR BN - ILEEH ©

BERGFTERIBISRZETTE
BESER B LB (“20205F 1557 K”) 2

EBGFTERBIRZEITE
MR IEmB AR (“2022F(E5T ) 2

EHRHEAEIRREEHBERE A EBREE
PAEES
BRI

2.2.

2.3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41

The nature and impact of the revised HKFRSs has had no

significant financial effect on these financial statements.

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Authority has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
Sales or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback ?

HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts '

Amendments to HKFRS 17

Insurance Contracts "°

Amendment to HKFRS 17

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 - Comparative
Information ¢

Amendments to HKAS 1

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
(the “2020 Amendments”) % *

Amendments to HKAS 1
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants
(the 2022 Amendments”) 2

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies '
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2.3.

2.4

B3R 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

Amendments to HKAS 12

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

4 As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective
date of the 2020 Amendments was deferred to annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. In addition, as a
consequence of the 2020 Amendments and 2022
Amendments, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation
of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains of Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised to align the corresponding wording with
no change in conclusion

5 As a consequence of thd amendments to HKFRS 17
issued in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend
the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply
HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods
beginning before 1 January 2023

6 An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating
to the classification overlay set out in this amendment shall
apply it on initial application of HKFRS 17

The Authority is in the progress of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, the Authority considers that these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Authority’s result of operations and financial position.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

The Authority measures its listed equity investments at fair value
at the end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the

measurement date.

43
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2. 4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1- based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Authority determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Authority assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If such an indication exists, the Authority makes
an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pretax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset, or the
cash- generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable
amount. The impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of the impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. The reversal of the impairment loss is credited to the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which it arises.
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B3R 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. 4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Authority if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s

family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Authority;
(i) has significant influence over the Authority; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of

the Authority or of a parent of the Authority;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions

applies:

(i) the entity and the Authority are members of
the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Authority are joint ventures
of the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Authority or an entity related to the Authority;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii)  a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Authority.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Property. plant and equipment and depreciation

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and location
for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to net income in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where the major
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset
as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Authority recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Owned assets

Buildings Over 25 years
Leasehold improvements 10%

Plant and machinery 10%

Fixture, fitting and equipment 10% - 20%

Right-of-use assets

Fixture, fitting and equipment Over the lease term

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in net income in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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BIF5 R ZRMIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financial
component or for which the Authority has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financial
component are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15. All the other financial assets are initially
recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in
the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit
or loss. Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date when the
Authority commits to purchase or sell the assets.

(a) Classification and measurement
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, subject to
impairment if the assets are held for the collection of
contractual cash flows where those contractual
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest.

Equity investments are measured at fair value
through profit or loss unless, on initial recognition,
the Authority has irrevocably elected to designate
such investments that are not held for trading as
equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income. Dividends of such investments
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the Authority’s right to receive payment is
established. Changes in the fair value of such
investments are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are never recycled to the statement of
profit or loss even when the assets are sold.

(b) Impairment

The Authority applies the expected credit loss model
on all the financial assets that are subject to impairment,
financial guarantee contracts, contract assets under
HKFRS 15 and lease receivables under HKFRS 16.
For trade receivables and contract assets without a
significant financial component, the Authority
applies the simplified approach which requires
impairment allowances to be measured at lifetime
expected credit losses.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

(b) Impairment (continued)

For other financial assets, impairment allowances
are recognised under the general approach where
expected credit losses are recognised in two stages.
For credit exposures where there has not been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recog-
nition, the Authority is required to provide for credit
losses that result from possible default events within
the next 12 months. For those credit exposures
where there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance
is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure irrespective of the
timing of the default.

The Authority considers a default has occurred when
a financial asset is more than 90 days past due unless
the Authority has reasonable and supportable informa-
tion to demonstrate that a more appropriate default
criterion should be applied.

(c) Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the assets have expired; or
where the Authority has transferred its contractual
rights to receive the cash flows of the financial
assets and has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership; or where control is not
retained.

Financial liabilities

The Authority’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities,
accounts payables, other payables and accruals. They are
initially recognised at fair value of the consideration
received less directly attributable transaction costs. After
initial recognition, they are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when they are
extinguished, i.e., when the obligation is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.
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B3R 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if, and
only if, there is currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Authority
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which the
Authority will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
or services to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly
probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Authority and the customer at contract inception. When the
contract contains a financing component which provides the
Authority a significant financial benefit for more than one year,
revenue recognised under the contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liability under the effective
interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price is
not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Training levy income is recognised based on a fixed
percentage on the F.O.B. value of clothing (including footwear)
items exported from Hong Kong on a monthly basis advised

from the Customs and Excise Department.

Training course income and industrial project income are
recognised on a time proportion basis over the period of the
respective course. The performance obligation is satisfied over
time as services are provided and short-term advances are

normally required before rendering the services.

As a practical expedient, the transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) are not disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements because all the remaining performance obligations
in relation to training course are a part of contracts that have an
original expected duration of one year or less. In addition, in
relation to rendering services for industrial project, the Authority
has a right to consideration from its customers in an amount
that corresponds directly with the value to the customers of the

Authority’s performance obligations completed to date.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,

to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Authority and the amount of the dividend can be measured

reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services
to a customer for which the Authority has received a consideration
(or an amount of consideration that is due) from the customer.
If a customer pays the consideration before the Authority
transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability
is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognised as
revenue when the Authority performs under the contract.



2.4 FEEHERIAE ()

A

AN
MENBERRAEMRFE—RIABREG A HNE
EERE AIZGHNREENEIHE -HEFRE#
RERATHIEETEREABOEAENIRER IS
TERAENBEENENE - BIEZGEE - FREHEE
BiEe 12 AARRAEENRKRAEAEMEENS
EEREREEEXNBEENRE  RIFEREEREE
fB- BEMBRERVRERRUREFERAE - B
ME BERXFEEIRACHAEERE  XERAEE
EERAHGEREARITENRERRENE > I
REERENERNERAEFRE - FREEERA
EfEEEAERAAPHNBIEERERETEINE -
HEaEREEGRNAETREREETRAE
RRREANSNEEAEEENZELETARE UK

HEFFEHERENEEERMEENEHRFE -
RERREFEHE

RRESREXRME > RERFSFEHEGEFHR
EREPRER > DUERRIGKENSENRE > B8
AREANEEZIHEAR > BIHPRKERE > EFH
BABBEF=ERRIH -

MY BRREME > RERFLSFEHEGEFHR
ERIBITHER ©

SiEf
BH RS
iRBikEREREST INEBESHN  BREFRERE
BRMEFFR EETHERT > BFREXHEERR
AERABRBATREETEFERR - PEEH >
REERENFRSEHFRACEFREAAEEF—
THFESTE AT LUEE -

B3R 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Lessee

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys a
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset
and the right to direct the use of the identified asset. All
leases with a term of more than 12 months are recognised
as assets representing the right of use of the underlying
asset and liabilities representing the obligation to make
lease payments, unless the underlying asset is of low value.
Both the assets and the liabilities are initially measured on
a present value basis. Right-of-use assets are recognised
under property, plant and equipment and are measured at
cost or valuation less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of the useful lives of
the assets and the lease terms. Lease liabilities are initially
measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made under the lease terms and subsequently adjusted by
the effect of the interest on and the settlement of the lease
liabilities, and the re-measurement arising from any

reassessment of the lease liabilities or lease modifications.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances.

Employee benefits
Paid leave carried forward

The Authority provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the end of the reporting period is permitted to
be carried forward and utilised by the respective employees
in the following year. An accrual is made at the end of each
reporting period for the expected future cost of such paid
leave earned during the year by the employees and carried
forward.
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2.4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits (continued)

Pension scheme contributions

The Authority operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to net income as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Authority in
an independently administered fund. The Authority’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Authority’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of income,
expenditure, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Authority's accounting
policies, management has made the following judgement,
apart from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Leases — whether a contract contains a lease under HKFRS 16

The Authority has several lease contracts and it applies
judgement in evaluating whether those contracts contain a
lease defined under HKFRS 16. The Authority also considered
the substance of the contracts as to what the payment or
contract faithfully represents for which the judgement is
made, and such assessment is made on an individual
contract basis.
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B 753k 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year, are described below.

Impairment of accounts receivable

The impairment provisions for accounts receivable are
based on assumptions about expected credit losses. The
Authority uses judgements in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the number of days that an individual receivable is
outstanding as well as the Authority’s historical experience
and forward-looking information at the end of each reporting
period. Changes in these assumptions and estimates could
materially affect the results of the assessment and it may be
necessary to make an additional impairment charge to profit
or loss. Further details of the accounts receivable are given

in note 7 to the financial statements.

INCOME TAX

The Authority has been exempted under Section 88 of the
Inland Revenue Ordinance from all taxes under the
Ordinance. As a result, no provision for Hong Kong profits
tax or deferred taxation is required in these financial

statements.
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5 ¥ -KGE -REREEAE 5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE

LIABILITIES
EREEE U
Right-of-use )
Owned assets
assets
BEEE « #ER BEELEE « #1&
B HEEE R 5 Fe 1k 28 B
Fixture, fitting EF Leasehold Plantand  Fixture, fitting A5t &t
and equipment Buildings  improvements machinery  and equipment Total Total
BT BT AT BT BT BT AT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2022£12831H 31 December 2022
2022418 At 1 January 2022:
1H
A Cost 225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,913,598 35,883,180 36,108,689
RRITE Accumulated
depreciation (134,147) (19,413,409) (8,266,074) (259,300) (6,778,775) (34,717,558) (34,851,705)
BRERME Net carrying
amount 91,362 - 17,000 13,799 1,134,823 1,165,622 1,256,984
7202218 At 1 January 2022,
1H > kR net of accumulated
REInE depreciation 91,362 - 17,000 13,799 1,134,823 1,165,622 1,256,984
B Additions 101,510 - - - 294,345 294,345 395,855
HE Disposal - - - - (600) (600) (600)
HEER Lease modification (6,049) - - - - - (6,049)
FRITEERRB Depreciation provided
during the year (49,282) - (17,000) (5,193) (344,658) (366,851) (416,133)
720224128 At 31 December 2022,
318 > Bk net of accumulated
REInE depreciation 137,541 - - 8,606 1,083,910 1,092,516 1,230,057
720225128 At 31 December 2022:
31H:
A Cost 320,970 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 8,205,943 36,175,525 36,496,495
REINE Accumulated
depreciation (183,429) (19,413,409) (8,283,074) (264,493) (7,122,033) (35,083,009) (35,266,438)
RERE Net carrying

amount 137,541 - - 8,606 1,083,910 1,092,516 1,230,057
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5. Y% BE- - SERESAE () 5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

FEREEE —
Right-of-use :
Owned assets
assets
BETLEE  #ER BEEEE « 51
B HEEE BB R e e
Fixture, fitting 1BF Leasehold Plantand  Fixture, fitting A5t &t
and equipment Buildings  improvements machinery  and equipment Total Total
BT BT AT AT AT BT BT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
2021%12831H 31 December 2021
202118 At 1 January 2021:
1H
A Cost 225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,990,136 35,959,718 = 36,185,227
REINE Accumulated
depreciation (82,592) (19,413,409) (8,249,071) (254,106) (6,620,965) (34,537,551) (34,620,143)
IRERE Net carrying
amount 142,917 - 34,003 18,993 1,369,171 1,422,167 1,565,084
2021418 At 1 January 2021,
18 > kR net of accumulated
REhE depreciation 142,917 - 34,003 18,993 1,369,171 1,422,167 = 1,565,084
B Additions - - - - 118,065 118,065 118,065
FAINERSE Depreciation provided
during the year (51,555) - (17,003) (5,194) (352,413) (374,610) (426,165)
$2021%128 At 31 December 2021,
318 > Bk net of accumulated
RIEE depreciation 91,362 - 17,000 13,799 1,134,823 1,165,622 = 1,256,984
20214128 At 31 December 2021:
31H :
5% Cost 225,509 19,413,409 8,283,074 273,099 7,913,598 35,883,180 36,108,689
RRIE Accumulated
depreciation (134,147) (19,413,409) (8,266,074) (259,300) (6,778,775) (34,717,558) (34,851,705)
RERE Net carrying
amount 91,362 - 17,000 13,799 1,134,823 1,165,622 1,256,984
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5. M- BRE - RfEREEREGR)

5T

(a) FIRENAERRREEFHEANKEERNER
B  EEHEBEERUFHRWE > FHO 5
H2EE4ERFABEHEREREEN °

A& & AZI4 A it

—FEUR

Within one year

—ErHREERERN After one year but within five years
HEEE (RITHR) Lease liabilities (undiscounted)
TIREEE Discount amount

HEaE (BIR) Lease liabilities (discounted)

TRED Current

JETRED Non-current

122022612 831HEREHEESENMETS
ISMEEF EMRERR3% (20214 : 3%) °

#20225F12H31H&20215F12HA31H$E
BEafRzREEt

1®2021%181H At 1 January 2021
MIZERF] R Accretion of interest
;IE Payments
720221818 At 1 January 2022
B Addition

& Modification
MIZERF] R Accretion of interest
EE Payments

#1E2022512H31HK%2021512A31HIEF
EEZEREEREH

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a) The Authority leases certain of its office equipment used
in its operations. Leases for these assets are negotiated
for terms ranging from two to four years and all the lease
payments are fixed.

Maturity profile of lease liabilities

2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$
51,648 46,816
97,104 52,080
148,752 98,896
(7,642) (3,569)
141,110 95,327
48,072 44,652
93,038 50,675

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities recognised at 31 December
2022 was 3% (2021: 3%).

Movements of carrying amounts of lease liabilities as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 _
AT

HKS
146,968
3,703
(55,344)
95,327
101,510
(6,364)
3,826
(53,189)
141,110

Amounts recognised in the statement of profit or
loss for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

BT BT

HK$ HK$

FREESETEER Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 49,282 51,555
HEABENFEZH Interest expense on lease liabilities 3,826 3,703
HAEEHRHKE Gain on lease modification SillS) -
53,423 55,258

F2022F > FIHANEERTEERHR
HKS$53,189 (20214 : HKS55,344)  FIliE B
Q0225 FAEBEFREENERREER
HKS$101,510F1HE&ERHKS101,510 (2022
F )

The Authority had total cash outflows for leases of
HK$53,189 in 2022 (2021: HK$55,344). The Authority
has a non-cash additions of right-of-use assets of
HK$101,510 and lease liabilities of HK$101,510 in
2022 and nil in 2021.
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BIF5 R ZRMIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

6. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2022 2021

BT Bt

L THERIEIRE » IRATF(EST ©  Listed equity investments, at fair value HK$ HK$
FEEERARAE HSBC Holdings plc 29,130,000 28,110,000
ARG ERLAH Swire Pacific Limited 8,244,000 5,340,000
ERBERRLA Power Assets Holdings Limited 14,107,500 15,972,000
HIEREFRAT Hysan Development Company Limited 7,337,000 6,989,000
FEEMEZRRERAE Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited 12,709,200 11,281,200
HERITERAT Hang Seng Bank Limited 12,980,000 14,300,000
84,507,700 81,992,200

HRIIREREELREAGRRN - LERERE
TRARAMU AT EF AR EZELKS -

BFE 2022 F£ 12 A 31 HIEFER » JIRBKBNVKR
REBDHRESZERERAFHKS1,270,824 5 X
HRMERATHKS330,000 ; EReEXHFRAA
HK$930,366 ; FIEERXBRAEHKS416,530 ; K
EMEZERAMRARHKS586,849R EERTHIR
AFHKS389,650 ©

FEWIRSR

FEYIE SR Accounts receivable

HHRBEEREFHRZHEAUCERE - GEH—KRE
30H - BEEFRERREEE - B RBENRE
HEEWIRR > EHMEEREEEAR  BREEA
EEEHERRPMEER - B L ER - URIESE
FERERESAETAMENER » BAEFEEENE
HHEERR o JIRE R E B ELIRRAEERIE
EAER R EMERRR - BEIRRBREE

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income as the
Authority considers these investments to be strategic in

nature.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Authority
received dividends in the amounts of HK$1,270,824,
HK$330,000, HK$930,366, HK$416,530, HK$586,849,
HK$389,650 from HSBC Holdings plc, Swire Pacific
Limited, Power Assets Holdings Limited, Hysan Development
Company Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited and
Hang Seng Bank Limited, respectively.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2022 2021
BIT AT
HK$ HK$

901,902 571,328

The Authority’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit. The credit period is generally around 30 days.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Authority
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has an accounting department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Authority’s accounts receivable relate to a large
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Authority does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its accounts
receivable balances. Accounts receivable are non-interest-bearing.
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FEYiRRX (457)

B ABEAEAREEBMBREZENFEINRMA
RENTRHREEGBE - RERRFFERAEEKIER
NEEFENRERGE RAEFRREESHE &
WIRERBEEERRSERRARF2H - BHIE
EFELESNBEEN - 8152022 £12 A31 HR
2021128318 » JIMBEREEEMBREEREI
MHEBREECHFERFEE -

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued)

The Authority applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed by
HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
loss model for all accounts receivable. To measure the
expected credit losses, accounts receivable have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The expected credit losses have
also incorporated forward looking information. As at 31
December 2022 and 2021, the Authority assessed the
loss allowance under the application of HKFRS 9 was
immaterial.

FA(IRRIA - MR H b ERIRER PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
2022 2021

BT BT

HK$ HK$
TETFEIE Prepayments 157,583 706,028
e K EH MM ERIERR Deposits and other receivables 1,095,670 1,746,618
FETFIE ~ IR R EMEWIRTN  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,253,253 2,452,646
A IETRE TR IRIE Less: non-current prepayments (9,761)  (273,738)
FETFIE « IRE R EMFEWIERN  Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 1,243,492 2,178,908
Be R A M EK IR E Impairment of deposits and other receivables

#1£2022 412 A31 H&2021 12 A31 B &%
REMEKIERNREENEEQATEERE - BH
BEBANGERTRAETEREERST G » &Ik
2022 ££12 B31 HK 2021F 12831 EHAEEE
B RREH -

B &R RITHRER

HE&kIBITHER  Cash and bank balances

BIERNS BBTERFLHE - WESHF X
BUIRA o SR1THEBR 17155 PR B2 07 8R4T oS0 A L A0
% o

The carrying amount of deposits and other receivables
approximated to their fair value as at 31 December
2022 and 2021. Their recoverability was assessed
with reference to the credit status of the debtors, and
the expected credit losses as at 31 December 2022
and 2021 were considered to be minimal.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2022 2021
BT BT
HK$ HK$

19,856,504 10,155,672

Cash at banks earn interests at floating rates based on
daily bank deposits rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
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10. FE{IHREX 10. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE
FEETEARSTE > HE—HRBRIOBAE The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 30-day terms.

1. BipEFIERESER 11. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
2022 2021
MiEE AT BT
Notes HK$ HK$
EHaRE Contract liabilities (a) 9,590,653 2,099,278
HithFE(TIRTR Other payables (b) 803,485 539,915
FESTER Accruals 589,739 381,563
10,983,877 3,020,756
B EE: Notes:
(a) #1E2022%F128H31HK2021F128318BZE (a) Details of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and
ZEAKAa/HERINT 2021 are as follows:
2022 2021
AT BT
EFUEZ 5FHITBEITEL  Short-term advances received from HK$ HK$
customers
BEHIERE Training courses 1,143,628 1,368,069
T%I1EH Industrial projects 8,447,025 731,209
RenasE Total contract liabilities 9,590,653 2,099,278
ENEaGAaERAEIIFEEN T XEEERN Contract liabilities include short-term advances received
= 43 o N to provide training courses and consultancy services for
B 2 SRR AT © 20225 BHI B FIR I industrial projects. The increase in contract liabilities in
FTERHREERERIREMN T XIEEHREM 2022 was mainly due to the increase in short-term
BRFSEr IR BN B S HB TR S N PR B o advances received from customers in relation to the

provision of consultancy services for industrial projects at
the end of the year.

TRERAREHEANFTARSHOSHWEE The following table shows the amounts of revenue
. =7 1l 2 N I HERis = recognised in the current reporting period that was included
E’JE’EE""“‘_I&QQEE&L’(%EUEEEEMEﬁE in contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
£F LARERR - period and recognised from performance obligations
satisfied in previous periods:
o
_|
2022 2021 =
SFARERVENasE Revenue recognised that was BT BT %
HERBKA : included in contract liabilities at the HK$ HK$ :C>
beginning of the reporting period: —
- e
IEFIERIE Training courses 1,368,069 1,592,690 o
T1EH Industrial projects 697,892 6,703,914 %
2,065,961 8,296,604 —
N
o
N
(b) EHMEMEFBEARFTE > FHYHERS=M@EA - (b) Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an

average term of three months.




2. HiBEEE 12. GENERAL RESERVE

BRI IR (WK RAFELTE > SIRBAELIE
ERFEANES () IFERER > FREEBRT
HEBRFYEEER (MEEER) RIEENN—KK
EABERRMERNBTRHEZRIT ; ;G0 KM
HEBRFAME  ARBEFIREREESHNEE

In accordance with the Industrial Training (Clothing Industry)
Ordinance Section 17, all funds of the Authority that are not
immediately required may be (i) deposited on fixed deposit
in any bank or savings bank nominated by the Financial
Secretary of the Government of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region (“Financial Secretary”) either generally
or, in any particular case, for that purpose; or (ii) subject to

-JL = °
s the prior approval of the Financial Secretary invested in
such investments as the Authority thinks fit.
3. FEALRS 13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

REER > IIRBEEMEALZEARZNT :

The Authority had the following material transactions with
related parties during the year:

dRBEEEEABZERM :

Compensation of key management personnel of the Authority:

2022 2021
BIT BT
HK$ HK$
eHpEETERN Short term employee benefits - 1,191,667

U MERRRSEER 14. NOTE TO THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

$2022412H31H

At 31 December 2022

TREBFEENEEEK Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
HEaE
Lease liabilities
BT
HK$
7202118 1H At 1 January 2021 146,968
SRS RHEL : Changes from financing cash flows:
HEEBENEARER Capital element of lease liabilities (51,641)
Hihpvgqk - Other changes:
HEEaENHEER Finance charge on lease liabilities 3,703
FIEZH Interest expenses (3,703)
72021 £12 B31 HK 2022461818 At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 95,327
SRS RHEL : Changes from financing cash flows:
HEEBENEARER Capital element of lease liabilities (49,363)
Hibpy#Mt - Other changes:
1B Modification (6,364)
HHEE New lease 101,510
HEaENHEER Finance charge on lease liabilities 3,826
FMELZH Interest expenses (3,826)

141,110
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15. HEENESNSRMTAE 15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as

BHENEMITARREHRZREENT !

follows:
2022
@_Eﬂ“ E E Financial assets
BAFEIAR
HEEKREN
THEE
Financial assets R AT A
at fair value HemEE
through other Financial
comprehensive assets at &5t
income amortised cost Total
AT AT AT
HK$ HK$ HK$
RNTESAEHM Equity investments at fair value
2HEK SR TE through other comprehensive
e income 84,507,700 - 84,507,700
FEIR RSN Accounts receivable - 901,902 901,902
SRIBEESETEN Financial assets included in
HIE S RERHE prepayments, deposits and other
{th FEI IR =R (K5 8) receivables (note 8) - 1,095,670 1,095,670
HE R BITEE Cash and bank balances - 19,856,504 19,856,504
84,507,700 21,854,076 106,361,776
SREE Financial liabilities T
HEREE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
HETT
HK$
FETIERR Accounts payable 236,036
SRIBEaEEM Financial liabilities included in other payables and
FES IR R FEST & A accruals 1,210,195
HEaE Lease liabilities 141,110
1,587,341
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15. EIERESMLSMTA (R 15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

(continued)
2021
SREE Financial assets
BRATEIAH
HEEKEN
EHMEE
Financial assets RS AT A
at fair value Hem&EE
through other Financial
comprehensive assets at &5t
income amortised cost Total
AT BT AT
HK$ HK$ HK$
BRNTMEG) A H Equity investments at fair value
2HEKS B9 HE through other comprehensive
b=t income 81,992,200 - 81,992,200
FEIRIE SN Accounts receivable - 571,328 571,328
SREEOETEN Financial assets included in
HIE N RERE prepayments, deposits and other
{thFE U BR 3N (PF5E8) receivables (note 8) - 1,746,618 1,746,618
HEeRIETHEER Cash and bank balances - 10,155,672 10,155,672
81,992,200 12,473,618 94,465,818
TREE Financial liabilities B AT A
HEraE
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
AT
HK$
FE{TIRER Accounts payable 259,389
SHRABEaEFEHEM Financial liabilities included in other payables and
FEATHRFN R FEE+ B B accruals 774,908

HEaE Lease liabilities 95,327
1,129,624




B3R 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. SREERABENDTEESRECIE 16. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

#81:2022 £12 A31 H%2021 #£12 A31 H >
TREFFRBHNERTARFEFESFR :

The following table provides the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Authority’s financial instruments as at 31
December 2022 and 2021:

2022%12H31H
EHEEZRLTEEE

31 December 2022
Financial assets measured at fair value

/‘\: EEI < IIE —:—EI:E :a g%
Fair value measurements categorised into
F—E -y £=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
BT BT BT
HKS HKS HK$
BATEFAEHME  Equity investments at fair
RSN R ERE value through other
comprehensive income
LEHRERE Listed equity investments
(&#H) (Hong Kong) 84,507,700 - -
2021£%12H31H 31 December 2021

Financial assets measured at fair value

/'\: /I\ ﬂE E—_.t % ﬁﬁ E“‘

Fair value measurements categorised into

EHEEZRLTEEE

E—E -y E=F &%

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

BT BT BT B

HKS HKS$ HK$ HK$
BATEIIAEME  Equity investments at fair

HWR SN RERE value through other

comprehensive income
LTHRRERE Listed equity investments

(FH) (Hong Kong) 81,992,200 - - 81,992,200

FER > F-BREZBHELETAES > URAR
BEEBAREHEZRE -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
and no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year.

AEBZ LTRERENATERRERETHRERE
T o

AREFAERIER - SHMEECFEBEMNRE  BE
HtERIER « RERRITHER - BARIARMBE
BEEAMEMRARESERNATEREREE
HE > TERHRIETAREIANERAE

The fair values of listed equity investments in Hong Kong
are derived from quoted prices in active markets.

The Authority has assessed that the fair values of accounts
receivable, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, cash and bank balances,
accounts payable and financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these
instruments.
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17.

SRRAMEEN BN RS 17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

JIMENTESMTIACERERRITREGRERT
BIAREMEZEAKRSNRERE - FEZFEHIA
NEZENERIMENEBELEES - IIRBHEE
FENKEEETEREENAMEREERER
PIONFEMRIRR - SR BESERMRE - &2 « Hft
FEMOIR AR FE (T iR R & R & R B FE H A FE (Y IR R R
FESTER -

AREEFER > RIIKBHER > TEEFNSHIA
N5 °

RN ERTAMSRNEERRBREERERR
FERRERBECRR - JINBREZEEFTRLRAR
EHERESERAMMEE  HEEMT -

REER AR

AIRBEZNTHEREHER > TESRIIRER
AFEIARMEERINREREWMEN 2B TS
B - JIRBHREREREEBI S EHHRG
THRREHRBETHRENE - IIRBEEBBHF
BEFERBRNREESGREZSEAR

TR EEXIZATHERMIEYN » RBEREHR
NEREXZETER > URFARSRREEHS 5

=1
E -

20224
12831H

31 December
2022

HE - HERH
Hong Kong — Hang Seng Index 19,781

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Authority’s principal financial instruments comprise
cash and bank balances and equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Authority’s operations. The Authority has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts receivable,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables, accounts payable and financial liabilities
included in other payables and accruals, which arise directly
from its operations.

It is, and has been, throughout the year under review, the
Authority’s policy that no trading in financial instruments
shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Authority’s financial instruments
are equity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The
members of the Authority reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Equity price risk

The Authority’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
prices relates primarily to the Authority’s equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income with
floating market prices. The Authority’s equity investments
are listed on the Hong Kong stock exchange and are valued
at quoted market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The members of the Authority manage this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks.

The market equity indices for the Hong Kong stock
exchange, at the close of business of the nearest trading
day in the year to the end of the reporting period, and their
respective highest and lowest points during the year were
as follows:

=/ 2021%F =/1E

2022 12H31H 2021

High/low 31 December High/low

2022 2021 2021

25,051/ 14,597 23,112 31,183/ 22,665



7. SMEREERNENRIEE (8

TR EMEHMBHMS AR ZHR T RAFHE
ARBEEY > UHREABREE > RERERKRE
HREEHCATEESEF1%E > HFAEE 8
BE - ENMENERERERESREREREN
EffREERRFTERESER > 25/ (B18) TR

MR EE -

B3R 2R MIEE NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 1%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity
investments, the impact is deemed to be on the equity
investment revaluation reserve and no account is given for
factors such as impairment which might impact on surplus/
(deficit).

@/ &hn/ G
AREE FERER
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in carrying in total
amount reserves
Bifk BT
2022 2022 % HK$
BAFEIIAREMEEEK Equity investments at fair value through other
BNEB LHRERSE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong +1% 845,077
BRATEIAHMEZER Equity investments at fair value through other
SNEELTRERSE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong -1% (845,077)
2021 2021
BAFEIIAREMEEEK Equity investments at fair value through other
BNEB LHRERSE comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong +1% 819,922
BRATEIAHMZER Equity investments at fair value through other
SNEELTRERS comprehensive income listed in Hong Kong -1% (819,922)

EEER

AlRB R ERITREEGIOIRELEEIENSHERER
MEEBTHEXCHEEHEASEEER - JlMAER
BAXREERFNB=ZFETRS - ZRIIRBIK
® o MEREBEGEEGRETRENERIOAEMRE
MREZRREIIREEE T REEHBERZ - HEREIE
EETHIEERN o 15 > FlRE S FHEREREWRIRR
BUREERIEI > MR ERARLAERK -

iR EtEREENEERR (ERERBITHER
&~ R - BAFEFAHMEEKRERE
RE) REXZHFEN - REARFLZESHITARK
EFERR °

HREIRE RMAEREERFNE=ZERMRT > &
HRIRIR M o AP IR BRBEETHNEERR

Credit risk

All the Authority’s bank balances are held in major financial
institutions located in Hong Kong, which management
believes are of high credit quality. The Authority trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties. It is the
Authority’s policy that all customers who wish to trade on
credit terms are required to pay deposit in advance except
for certain customers who have signed strategic alliance
agreements to jointly develop ongoing projects with the
Authority. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Authority’s exposure to bad debts
is not significant.

The credit risk of the Authority’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, deposits, other
receivables and equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments.

Since the Authority provides services only to recognised
and creditworthy third parties, there is no requirements for
collateral. There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Authority.



7. SREREENENOREE ()

EE R (8)

REERRERKER
TRIRFIMBNEERE > JRE

17.

BEERRERRE

BRR  RIEFEREBEENNEANE HEANESHM
BH > [TATREELURBEN » REAEEI2A3L
AEREEISERER - EHFRMBEENR

E#EfE ©

2022%12831H

FEBHRER

ERMEECERM
MIA ~ e R HEM
FEW IR
_ IE"I%‘.**

RE RIRITEER
-fAARIREA

20214 12K31H

FEWIRTR

SHEEOEEN
2 e R
RIS 12
R

e R BTHE

31 December 2022

Accounts receivable*®

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
- Normal**

Cash and bank balances
- Not yet past due

31 December 2021

Accounts receivable*

Financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

- Normal**

Cash and bank balances
- Not yet past due

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Authority’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial

assets.
1218 A T8 HA
EEHE
12-month 2 HATEHRE B E51E
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
R
F—ME  EIMREE FE=REE  Simplified At
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
- - - 901,902 901,902
1,095,670 - - - 1,095,670
19,856,504 - - - 19,856,504
20,952,174 - - 901,902 21,854,076
1218 B 7888
EEBHE
12-month ZHATEHRE B E51E
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
A=
FE—PEE BEIMER E=REE  Simplified a5t
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
AT AT BT BT AT
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
- - - 571,328 571,328
1,746,618 - - - 1,746,618
10,155,672 - - - 10,155,672
11,902,290 - - 571,328 12,473,618
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SREARTENENREE (4§ 17. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
* S|4k 5 FE FB B 4 75 3k ER AR FE UR IR TR AR > B R *  For accounts receivable to which the Authority applies the
;&Eﬁéﬁ?’%ﬁi Bﬁ%}7 ° simplified approach for impairment, information is disclosed in note

7 to the financial statements.

** MESERNHE e - HEKEINESREE **  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
SR LA RIS A2 AR o e e
REZR B KIS > IXESHBEEVEEBEEW that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
lﬁ.ﬁ rIEﬁ-!‘"J o since initial recognition.
B E L AR Liquidity risk
BN EEE RN ENEBRATEI AR MS The Authority’s objective is to maintain a balance
_ _ R _ ’ o between continuity of funding and flexibility through
ERE RS E > MR ESERERIEEZE investment and disposal of equity investments at fair
R T value through other comprehensive income.
RBEAR > lIGFENESREERESHNRIFIRAH The maturity profile of the Authority’s financial liabilities
E BB SR as at the end of reporting period, based on contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2022
REKEFE
DR1E
On demand or 1EFELE
less than one One to five At
year years Total
AT AT AT
HK$ HK$ HK$
FE{IESR Accounts payable 236,036 - 236,036
SRiBEaIEEMtENIES Financial liabilities included in
EIESTER other payables and accruals 1,210,195 - 1,210,195
HEaE Lease liabilities 51,648 97,104 148,752
1,497,879 97,104 1,594,983
2021
DILE
On demand or 1EESFE
less than one One to five At -
year years Total 5
HT HT B =
HK$ HK$ HK$ =z
FE{IESR Accounts payable 259,389 - 259,389 é
SRiBEaIEEMtENIES Financial liabilities included in ,:E
EIESTER other payables and accruals 774,908 - 774,908 -
HEaRE Lease liabilities 46,816 52,080 98,896 %
1,081,113 52,080 1,133,193 %
S
N
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SREMREENENREE ()

BAEHE
B EFAEEN T EERRREIIRBFEEEN
BB URRFBRBENEARLLE > RIFHET -

B EEHEARE  REKERE BEREH
BECARTEFHAR EMENHABRELRRR
FRB R EIE LRI (KR RAFARREREHE
ERME  JIMBAEFREFTNRCEREREE - &
F2022%F12A31HKR2021F12B31HILEFE > EE
BANER MERNEFLERE -

MERRNEFH

AYHBHRERENL2023F58 28K EEH L
RIETIEE -

17.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Authority’s capital management
is to safeguard the Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Authority manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Authority may
adjust and manage all the funds and property of the
Authority in accordance with the Industrial Training
(Clothing Industry) Ordinance. The Authority is not subject
to any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes during
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December
2021.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the members of the Authority on 2 May 2023.
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